
 

   
Sierra County Commission 

Sierra County Commission Chambers  
1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 

Tuesday, August 20th, 2024 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 
(https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897)  (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 

 
     

Call to Order:   9:30   AM   Public Hearing on Sun State Towers application for a Telecommunications 
Permit for a New 125’ Monopole Tower with Verizon Wireless at 3 Berry Patch Road in 
Arrey. (Wireless Tower Solutions)   

 
10:00 AM   Regular Meetings 

 
Roll Call:      Travis Day-Chairman                Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 

        James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair                Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
      Hank Hopkins -Commissioner               Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 
 

Introduction of Guests 
 

I. Approval of Agenda 
II. Approval of Minutes  

A. Regular Meeting – July 23rd, 2024 
B. Special Meeting – July 23rd, 2024 

III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes  
IV. Consent Agenda: 

A. Resolution No.110-264 Accounts Payables 
B. Resolution No. 110-265 Indigent Claims 
C. Indigent Burial No. B2024-009 
D. Claim of Exemption No. 24-006 (Dennison, Kuenstler & Hopkins) 
E. Claim of Exemption No. 24-007 (Irwin) 

V. Presentations/Reports: 
A. Years of Service Awards 
B. Department Reports 

VI. Board of Finance: 
A. July Reconciliation 

VII. Old Business:  
A. Petition for Road Vacation VR24-002 Appointment of Cathy Vickers, Byron Wilson, and 

Beau Marshall as Freeholders to view the request to vacate a portion of Tularosa Rd near 
Engle, with Jared Bartoo as an alternate. 
 
 



 
VIII. New Business: 

A. Petition for Road Vacation VR24-003 Appointment of John Diamond, Byron Wilson, and 
Beau Marshall as Freeholders to view the request to vacate Tucker Rd in Winston Townsite, 
with Jared Bartoo and Cathy Vickers as alternates. 

B. Sun State Towers application for a Telecommunications Permit for a New 125’ Monopole 
Tower with Verizon Wireless at 3 Berry Patch Road in Arrey. (Wireless Tower Solutions) 

C. MOU with Catron County Assigning fiscal Agent Responsibilities for County Livestock Loss 
Authority  
 

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement: 
A. Corrections Officer Recruitment Fund Grant Agreement 
B. Intergovernmental Services Agreement with Sierra County Co. and SCCOG for Two 

Hundred Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($200,000.00) for programmatic costs and 
resources for law enforcement departments in Sierra County  

C. Grant Agreement for Rural & Nonmetro Election Infrastructure Grant Program  
X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations: 

A. Resolution No. 110-266 Authorizing and Approving Submission of a Completed 
Application for Financial Assistance and Project Approval to the New Mexico Finance 
Authority  

B. Resolution No. 110-267 Adopting a Nominal Fee Stipend Program Policy  
C. Resolution No. 110-268 Adopting Electronic Signature Policy  
D. Resolution No. 110-269 Sierra County, New Mexico Election Proclamation and Resolution  

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H): 
Pending and Threatened Litigation: 

A. In the Matter of Sierra County Clerk, No. D-721-CV-2024-0087 
Personnel 
 
Real Estate: 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session: Adjourn 
 

 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, September 17th, 2024, at 10:00 AM. 
Items for the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm 
on the Monday the week before the meeting. 
 

 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting, please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as 
possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible 
formats. Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is 
needed. 
 
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
        JULY 23, 2024 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo-Absent 
 
 County Attorney: David Pato 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
   
Tim Kuzdrowski, Ted Kuzdrowski, Josh Baker, Sierra County Sentinel, 
Ruben Lucero, Billy Neely, Travis and Sharon Luna, Judy Luna, Kandes 
Schofield, Chelsey Garcia, Candace Chavez, Ryan Williams, Keith Whitney, 
Jocelyn Holguin 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting-June 25, 2024 
 
 

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 2   

 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the minutes as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
 
  Ted Kuzdrowski stated that he has contacted the County and nobody will 

return his calls.  He also emailed Flood Commissioner Jones and received no 
reply.  Mr. Kuzdrowski asked who is responsible for cleaning up the 
retention pond on Cross Canyon Road? He stated that he has been doing the 
task himself, but there is too much big debris in it now and he cannot do it 
anymore.   

 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
A.  Resolution No. 110-257- Account Payables 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-258- Indigent Claims 
 
C.  Claim of Exemption 24-005 (Covarrubias) 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
C.  Presentation regarding Winston Speed Bumps 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  June Reconciliation 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the June Reconciliation as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A.  Direction to staff to publish amendment to subdivision ordinance 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 3   

 

   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Direction to staff to 
publish amendment to subdivision ordinance as presented.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioners 
District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

 
     

IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 
 
A.  CES-INTRAWORKS-SO-Van Patten Security-LACTF 
   
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve CES-INTRAWORKS-SO-Van 

Patten Security-LACTF as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

 
B.  CES-ASA Architects-EOC New Building-LACTF 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve CES-ASA Architects-

EOC New Building-LACTF as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

 
C. Memorandum of Agreement (MOU) Between the Board of Regents of New 

Mexico State University/New Mexico Department of Agriculture and the 
County Livestock Loss Authority 

 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve MOU Between the Board of 

Regents of NMSU/NM Department of Agriculture and the County Livestock 
Loss Authority as presented. Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED 
the motion. Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
D. Amendment to County Livestock Loss Authority Joint Powers Agreement 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Amendment to County 

Livestock Loss Authority Joint Powers Agreement as presented. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
E. State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration General 

Fund 93100 Capital Appropriation Project. 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve State of NM Dept. of Finance 

and Admin General Fund 93100 Capital Appropriation Project as presented. 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 4   

 

F. Fiscal Agent Agreement with South Central Council of Governments 
 
  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Fiscal Agent Agreement 

with SCCOG as presented. Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion. 
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
          G. Local Government Road Fund Cooperative Agreement-CAP 

 H. Local Government Road Fund Cooperative Agreement-SB 
 I.  Local Government Road Fund Cooperative Agreement-SP 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Items G, H, and I Local  

Government Road Fund Cooperative Agreement CAP, SB, SP as presented. 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 

 
A.  Resolution No. 110-259-Budget Transfers 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-259 as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-260- Fourth Quarter Financial Report 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-260- 
Fourth Quarter Financial Report as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins  
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 110-261- Final Budget for FY24-25 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution 110-261 Final 
Budget FY 24-25 as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED 
the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
D.  Resolution No. 110-262- Budget Adjustments 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-262-
Budget Adjustments as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
E.  Resolution No. 110-263-Resolution calling for Convention of States  
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 5   

 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-263-
Resolution calling for Convention of States as presented.  Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 

A. In the Matter of Sierra County Clerk, D-721-CV-2024-00087 
                                                                
           PERSONNEL: 
      
            REAL ESTATE:  
 
                       XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, August 20, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. at the Sierra 
County Commission Chambers at 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT: 11:58 A.M. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 6   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 23rd day of July, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 
 

   
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
        JULY 23, 2024 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:  12 NOON 
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
12:00 P.M. on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board:  Shelly Trujillo-Absent 
                                         Amy Whitehead-Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 County Attorney: Dave Pato 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Sierra County Sentinel, Jessica West, Ryan Williams, Billy Neeley, Sandy 
Jones 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
III.  PUBLIC COMMENT-LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 

 
IV.  NEW BUSINESS 
 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 2   

 

A.  Direction regarding In the Matter of Sierra County Clerk, D-721-CV-2024-
0008 
 

 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to Reject the Flood Commissioners 
request to the District Court to intervene in the proceeding regarding 
election for the question of establishment of a Sierra County Arroyo Flood 
Control District as presented. Vice Chair Paxon asked that we move forward 
with the ballot question on whether or not to establish a Sierra County 
Arroyo Flood Control District and the election of five directors this 
November 5, 2024.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
July 23, 2024 
Page 3   

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 23rd day of July, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly Trujillo, County Clerk 

   
 





     

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

 

 

   

  

  

 

   

  

 

    

  

  

  

  

   

  

   

 

   

 

  

    

   

  

 

 

   

 

  

 

    

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

    

  

    

    

  

   

   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

 

    

  

   

 

 

   

  

    

  

   

  

 

  

    

  

  

  

 

   

  

    

  

 

  

    

  

  

  

    

  

  

     

   

    

  

 

 

  

 

    

  

  

 

  

  

  

   

   

 

  

 

    

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

  

   

   

 

  

 

    

  

 

  

  

    

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

    

  

  

  

   

   

   

    

    

  

   

 

 

  

  

   

   

    

 

 

    

  

  

   

  

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

  

 

  

  

 

   

   

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

   

   

  

  

 

 

  

 

   

    

   

  

 

 

  

 

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

   

  

  

     

 

  

   

  

  

  

    

   

 

 

    

  

    

   

  

 

 

  

 

   

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

    

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

     

   

  

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

  

   

  

  

    

   

 

 

    

  

 

   

  

  

     

   

    

  

   

  

   

   

 

  

    

  

  

  

   

  

   

   

    

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

   

   

   

  

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

  

  

   

    

  

  

 

    

    

   

  

    

   

 

  

  

   

   

  

   

  

 

 

  

 

    

  

   

   

  

 

    

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

    

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  

 

 

               

  

  

    

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

             

    

                    

                     

                     

                     

                     

                  

   

             



  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

  

  

   

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

    

     

   

 

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

   

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  



         

      

   

         

  

 

   

  

 

 

   

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

   

    

        

 

 

   

  

  

 

   

   

  

 

 

  

   

  

  

 

  

      

  

  

 

   

     

  

 

  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 

  

  

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



      

   

 

      

  

 

 

   

      

  

 

 

  

     

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

  

  

    

  

   

 

   

    

  

 

 

   

  

 

 

   

 

  

    

      

        

      

      

     

     

      

     

       

       

       

      

        

       

       

        

     



  

  

  

  

 

  

 

   

     

  

 

 

   

    

  

 

 

   

   

  

 

 

  

   

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

   

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
 

   

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  



  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

  

  

 

   

   

  

 

   

 

     

   

    

    

    

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

   

 

 

  

 

    

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



  

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

  

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

  

  

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

   

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

   

 

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

 

  

 



  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

 



  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

  

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

   

 
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

   

  

  

 

 

    

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 



  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

       

    

  

       

 

      

 

       

    

    

    

  

      

    

    

    

    

        

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

  

   

 

  

 

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

 
  

   

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

         

 

 

  

 

 

  

     

    

    

 

     

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

                                            

              

          

           

         

         

          

         

         

          

         

        

        

         

        

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

   

  



           

           

         

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

        



           

           

         

        

        

         

         

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

         

         

        

         

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

         

         

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        



           

           

        

         

        

         

         

         

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

        

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

         

         

         

        

         

         

         

        



           

            

         

        

         

         

          

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

         

         

        

         

         

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

        



           

          

         

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

          

         

          

         

          

         

         

          

         



           

           

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

         

         

        

         

         

        

        

         

        

        

         

         

        

         

         

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

        



           

            

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

         

         

        

         

        

         

        

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

        

        



           

           

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

         

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

        

        

         

        



           

            

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

         

         

        

        

         

         

         

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

        

        



           

           

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

         

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

         

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

         

       

          

          

            

         

                                                                                                                                      

            

          

          

        

         

         

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

         



         

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

       

        

          

      

          

           

     

            

       

       

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  
  
  

 
 

  
  
 
 
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

   

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



           

           

       

        

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

        

        

       

       

       

            

        

        

       

       

        

        

       

          

            

       

        

             

      

                                                                                                                                    

             

          

         

        

         

         

        

          

        

        

        

         

         

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        



         

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

           

       

      

          

           

  

           

 

 

  

  

    

  

   

 

 

 

   

   

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

   

       

   

   

  

  

  

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

     

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

   

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 



             

           

        

        

          

        

         

         

        

         

        

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

       

           

          

        

              

          

                                                                                                                          

            

         

         

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        



           

          

        

         

         

        

        

         

        

       

      

         

            

        

       

            

             

  

                                                                                                                       

               

          

         

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

        

         

        

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

         

        

        

         

         

        

        

         

        

         

        

         

          

         

            

          



  

  

 

  

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

   

 

  

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

     

   

    

  

 

 

         

     

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

   

    

 

     

 

  

  

  

   

 

 

  

 

 

        

  

  

  

 

 

 

    

     

 

   

  

  

    

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

  



         

  

  

 

 

 

    

 

   

   

    

  

    

  

 

 

      

  

   

  

    

  

 

 

     

    

   

  

  

 

    

  

  

 

      

  

   

  

    

     

      

    

  

 

       

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

   

 

    

 

  

   

     

   

  

  

  

  

  

     

  

  

    

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

         

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



      

   

 

    

  

 

 

   

   

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

  

 

    

 

     

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

    

   

  

   

     

    

   

  

 

   

     

 

    

  

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

     

   

    

   

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

    

  

 

  

   

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

    

     

     

    

    

    

    

   

     

    

    

    



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

   

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

     

  

  

   

 

 

    

  

     

 

 

 

    

  

  

  

         

       

  

   

     

  

  

 

    

  

   

  

  

  

   

  

   

  

  

  

   

  

   

  

  

   

   

  

   

  

  

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 
  
  
  
  

  

  
  

  

  

  
  

  

  
  

  

  
  

  

  
 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

   



  

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

 

   

  

  

  

    

   

  

  

   

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

   

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

   

   

 

 

 

   

  

 

  

  

 

     

  

  

 

  

   

 

     

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

    

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

   

 

     

 

  

  

  

    

   

    

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

    

 

    

   

 

 

      

   

   

    

    

   

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

         

   

   

    

    

 

  

  

 

 

     

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

    

  

 

   

 

  

    

  

  

   

    

  

   

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

  

   

  

   

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



         

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

       

 

 

   

   

  

      

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

   

   

 

    

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

      

   

  

     

   

     

  

  

   

    

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

    

  

   

  

  

    

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  
 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

     

 

     

 

   

  

  

  

  

 

         

    

 

  

  

  

 

   

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

   

  

  

 

   

  

 

  

  

  

  

   

     

    

    

 

   

  

  

 

   

  

  

 

 

   

     

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

     

   

    

    

   

   

     

   

      



  

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

     

 

   

  

  

  

  

 

   

  

  

  

 

   

  

  

  

 

   

  

  

  

 

    

  

   

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

  

 

 

      

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

   

  

  

  

   

  

  

   



  

  

   

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

     

 

  

   

  

   

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

   

  

   

     

    

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

       

  

  

 

 

   

  

  

 

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

  

  

  

 

 

     

       

    

    

 

      

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  



  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

  

   

    

  

  

 

   

    

      

 

 

     

   

    

     

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

      

  

  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  



  

  

   

 

 

  

 

   

   

    

 

 

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

      

  

 

 

   

   

  

 

 

  

   

    

  

 

      

     

 

 

     

  

  

 

  

     

  

 

 

   

     

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

  

  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

   

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

 



  

  

 

 

  

 

      

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

  

  

    

 

   

 

   

    

  

 

 

   

  

 

 

   

 

  

    

  

 

 

   

    

  

 

 

   

    

       

        

      

        

      

        

       

       

       

     

       

       

       

        

     

      

      



  

  

  

 

 

  

 

   

   

  

 

 

  

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

   

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

  

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

     

    

    

  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

   

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 



  

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

   

 

   

 

  

  

   

 

   

 

   

  

   

 

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

     

    

    

 

    

    

    

  

    

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

  

  

 

   

  

  

  

   

 

   

 

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

   

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 



  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

  

   

 

  

  

   

 

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

      

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

   

  

  

 

 



  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

       

     

    

    

    

     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     
        
     

     
     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     

     
     
     
     

    

     
     
     
     
     

    

   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

   

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

 

   

  

   

 

   

 

  

     

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

      

    

    

    

    

    

    

     

    

    

    

    

      

  

 

  

 

   

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

   

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

  



  

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

       

    

       

 

      

 

       

    

    

    

    

    

 

      

    

    

    

    

    

           

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

  
  
  

  
  
 

 
  

   

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 



           

           

               

           

            

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

         

        

         

         

        

        

        

         

        

         

        

        

        

         

         

         

         

         

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

       

          

         

        

            

            

       



         

      

           

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

           

      

         

             

        

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

  

  

  

 

  

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

   

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  



         

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

          

      

           

       

          

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

          

       

       

           

      

          

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

  
  
  
  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



           

           

         

        

        

         

         

        

        

        

           

       

          

     

                                                                                                                                           

               

          

           

         

         

         

         

         

          

          

         

          

          

          

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

          

         

         

         

         

         

          

         

         

         

         

           

         

         

         

         

          

         

            

           

       

       

            



         

      

         

          

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

         

       

        

         

            

      

  

 

      

  

   

   

  

    

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

    

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 



            

           

         

        

        

        

        

        

          

        

      

             

         

          

        

         

         

        

        

        

        

       

          

            

  

              

        

        

       

      

      

      

      

      

      

       

      

      

      

      

       

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

         

          

          

          

            

             

  



                

      

         

      

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

         

       

        

     

       

     

  

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

    

    

 

   

   

   

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

   

  

   

  

   

    

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

     

   

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

      

      

      

       

     

    

        

        

         

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

       

   

  

      

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

 



       

   

    

   

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

    

      

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

    

 

     

   

  

 

   

     

  

   

   

   

    

    

    

 

      

    

      

    

 

  

 

 

      

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

  

   

  

 

   

  

  

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

  

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

  

 

     

  

  

     

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

   

   

     

     

     

     

    

   

   

   

     



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

       

 

 

 

   

   

   

       

    

     

 

 

 

   

  

  

  

     

 

  

    

  

   

    

   

    

  

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

   

 

 

 

  

    

  

  

  

 

        

   

 

   

 

  

  

  

   

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

 

 

  

 

    

     

 

   

  

     

  

 

   

  

     

  

   

  

      

  

  

 

 

 

       

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

      

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

   

  

   

  

     

  

 

    

    

  

  

 

  

   

  

   

  

 

  

  

    

 

 

  

  

    

  

 

 

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 



         

      

 

   

  

   

  

 

   

  

   

  

 

    

  

  

  

   

  

    

  

 

    

  

    

  

 

    

  

   

  

 

        

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

     

 

   

 

  

 

 

     

  

 

  

  

   

    

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

      

     

     

     

     

     

 

      

        

       

        



    

   

     

 

  

   

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

        

  

 

 

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

  

   

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

       

   

   

   

    

 

     

  

 

  

   

  

    

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  



  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

 

 

  

 

  

    

 

    

     

 

  

  

  

  

   

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

     

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

  

   

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

     

  

  

  

   

  

  

   

 

 

   

   

 

   

  

  

  

 

        

  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

   

  

 

        

   

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  
 
 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

   

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

 

     

 

    

    

  

  

  

  

   

  

   

    

   

    

  

   

   

   

  

 

 

        

 

  

  

   

   

    

     

   

    

   

    

   

    

   

 

 

 

 

     

   

     

    

     

    

    

    

    

    

    

   

    

    

    

   

    

  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

   

   

    

   

    

   

    

       

     

   

       

    

   

   

    

   



    

   

  

      

    

     

      

  

     

   

   

     

    

    

   

    

    

 

    

    

   

   

   

 

 

   

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

   

 

  

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

  

 

    

   

   

 

 

   

 

   

   

    

  

   

   

    

   

  

   

   

     

  

    

      

   

   

     

      

   

   

    

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

   

 

       

 

   

 

    

   

   

    

  

     

   

   

    

    

         

   

   

 

   

    

  

   

    

   

    

  

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

     

 

     

 

    

 

 

   

   

  

    

 

   

   

   

    

  

   

   

   

   

      

 

 

   

    

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

  

  

 

 

  

         

    

   

    

   

    

   

    

   

    

   

    

    

    

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

    

   

    

   

    

    

    

   

    

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

    

  

  

 

   

      

     

    

     

    

     

    

     

   

   

   

   

    



  

  

  

 

 

       

  

        

    

  

  

   

  

 

    

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

   

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

    

 

   

  

   

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

      

    

 

   

   

   

    

 

   

   

   

    

   

  

  

      

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

     

   

   

   

  

   

      

   

    

 

   

   

   

   

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

   

 

 

  

  

 

 

       

 

    

  

 

     

 

   

   

    

    

    

  

   

   

    

 

       

  

 

 

   

   

   

      

   

   

   

   

   

      

   

  

   

   

    

     

    

   

 

    

   

   

   

      

   

   

    

    

  

   

   

  

   

   

   

    

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



      

   

    

  

  

 

 

  

  

     

 

   

   

   

    

   

 

 

   

   

    

  

 

 

  

 

 

         

 

  

 

 

 

  

    

  

 

 

   

  

 

   

   

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

  

  

   

    

   

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

     

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



         

      

    

   

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

   

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

 

    

 

     

 

   

   

   

   

    

   

 

   

   

    

     

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

       

      

  

 

   

   

   

    

   

  

  

  

  

   

   

   

   

 

      

   

   

   

    

  

       

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

 

    

 

    

     

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

  

 

  

    

   

   

   

   

    

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

    

   

   

   

    

   

   

   

    

   

   

    

    

   

   

 

 

 

       

  

 

 

       

   

    

  

 

  

   

  

  

  

  
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

    

     

    

    



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

       

  

 

      

   

  

 

   

 

  

  

   

  

  

      

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

    

  

   

   

   

   

   

      

   

    

   

  

   

   

   

    

    

  

   

   

   

    

   

    

    

    

   

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  
  
  
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

     

   

   

     

     

     

   

   

     

    



    

   

     

 

   

   

  

   

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

  

 

 

       

  

  

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

    

     

    

   

     

       

      

    

   

  

 

 

   

   

   

  

  

   

    

    

   

    

    

    

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

     

      

       

       

      

     

    

      

      

      

    

     

    

     

        

      

       

        

        

       

        

      

      



  

  

   

   

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

     

 

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

  

      

   

 

 

   

 

   

   

  

    

   

  

   

   

   

  

  

   

   

    

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

 

   

   

 

   

  

  

   

   

   

   

    

 

   

   

   

    

  

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 
 
 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

   

    

   

    

   

    

    

   

      

    

   



  

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

   

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

       

 

 

 

   

   

   

    

          

 

 

   

   

   

    

    

    

    

     

    

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

     

    

   

   

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

   

  

   

   

   

   

    

   

  

   

   

    

     

  

    

   

   

    

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  
  
  
  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 



  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

  

   

  

    

 

   

 

   

     

 

  

 

  

   

   

   

   

 

  

   

   

   

    

  

   

  

   

   

   

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

  

 

  

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

  

 

   

   

 

 

 

 

  

   

  

 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



         

      

   

   

 

   

   

   

    

 

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

   

  

 

   

   

   

    

 

   

   

   

     

 

 

    

   

   

        

         

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

        

 

      

 

   

  

   

   

   

  

   

  

   

   

   

        

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

     

 

   

   

    

 

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

 

   

   

    

   

 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

 

 

  

     

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



    

  

  

   

 

 

 

     

 

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

      

  

    

   

 

    

  

       

  

 

  

   

  

  
  
  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 





   

     

     

    

     

     

 

   

   

  

  

 



 

  
   

   

 

 
 
 
 

     
    

 

   
     
   
  

 
 

  

  

 
 
 
 

 

 

    
     

 

     

 

     

 

     

 
 

     

  

   
    

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 













































































































































Blue Arrow Proposed Sun State Tower Location 

Adjacent Parcel Markers:  All Property within 1,500’ is owned by Tierra Blanca, LLC except Green Arrow, Owned  Soil and Water District (From 
Sierra County Assessor Maps) 

 

 

                                         Adjacent Property Owners within 1,500 feet.  All parcels except one are owned by Tierra Blanca LLC 



. 

 

 









January 2014 

 

 
 
 

 
April 28, 2024 
 
Mr. Dean Williamson 
Wireless Tower Solutions 
115 S. Dave Lyle Blvd. 
Rock Hill SC 29720 
 
 
RE: Sun State Tower Sierra County WTS Review 
 
 

             Section 6 Co-locators. 
 
             Sun State Towers will be constructing a 125’ monopole. It will be structurally capable of allowing up to three   
             cell phone carriers on this structure.  
 
 
            Sincerely, 
 
 

            Les. F. Gutierrez 

 
 
           Les. F. Gutierrez, Senior Site Acquisition Consultant 
           for, Sun State Towers. 
           3 Ciboita Peak 
           Santa Fe, NM 87508 
           4505-710-2079 
           LesGutierrez34@gmail.com         













































































                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

Date: June 3, 2024 

 
Kyle Fortin Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
Pinnacle Consulting, Inc. 326 Tryon Road 
1426 N Marvin Street #101 Raleigh, NC 27603 
Gilbert, AZ 85233 (919) 661-6351 
(480) 664-9588 Geotech@tepgroup.net 
 
Subject:        Subsurface Exploration Report 
 
Pinnacle Designation: Site Number: NM06-087 
 Site Name: Caballo 
  
Engineering Firm Designation: TEP Project Number: 340646.959442 
 
Site Data: 3 Berry Patch Road, Arrey, NM 87930 (Sierra County) 
 Latitude N32° 53' 21.7'', Longitude W107° 18' 29.6'' 
 125 Foot – Proposed Monopole Tower 
 
Kyle Fortin, 

Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. (TEP) is pleased to submit this “Subsurface Exploration Report” to 
evaluate subsurface conditions in the tower area as they pertain to providing support for the tower foundation. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted geotechnical engineering practice for 
specific application to this project. The conclusions in this report are based on the applicable standards of TEP’s 
practice in this geographic area at the time this report was prepared. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is 
made. 

TEP assumes the current ground surface elevation, tower location and subsequent centerline provided are correct 
and are consistent with the elevation and centerline to be used for construction of the structure. Should the ground 
surface elevation be altered and/or the tower location be moved or shifted TEP should be contacted to determine 
if additional borings are necessary. 

The analyses and recommendations submitted herein are based, in part, upon the data obtained from the 
subsurface exploration. The soil conditions may vary from what is represented in the boring log. While some 
transitions may be gradual, subsurface conditions in other areas may be quite different. Should actual site 
conditions vary from those presented in this report, TEP should be provided the opportunity to amend its 
recommendations, as necessary. 

We at Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. appreciate the opportunity of providing our continuing professional 
services to you and Pinnacle. If you have any questions or need further assistance on this or any other project, 
please give us a call. 

Report Prepared/Reviewed by: Zeke A. Buchta, G.I.T. / John D. Longest, P.E. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

Andrew R. Berglund, P.E. 



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 2 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2) SITE EXPLORATION 

3) SITE CONDITIONS 

4) SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

4.1) Soil 
4.2) Rock 

4.3) Subsurface Water 
4.4) Frost 

5) TOWER FOUNDATION ANALYSIS 

5.1) Shallow Foundation 

Table 1 – Shallow Foundation Design Parameters 

5.2) Drilled Shaft Foundation 

Table 2 – Drilled Shaft Foundation Design Parameters 

5.3) Modulus of Subgrade Reaction 

6) SEISMIC SITE CLASS 

7) SOIL RESISTIVITY 

8) CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS - SHALLOW FOUNDATION 

8.1) Excavation 

8.2) Dewatering/Foundation Evaluation/Subgrade Preparation 

8.3) Fill Placement and Compaction 

8.4) Reuse of Excavated Soil 

9) CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS - DRILLED SHAFTS 

10) SITE PHOTOGRAPHS 

APPENDIX A 

Boring Layout 

APPENDIX B 

Boring Log 

 

 

 

  



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 3 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

It is understood a monopole communications tower is being planned for construction at the above referenced site. 
The structure loads can be obtained from the tower manufacturer. 

2) SITE EXPLORATION 

The field exploration included the performance of one soil test boring (B-1). The boring was advanced to the auger 
refusal depth of 15 feet below ground surface (bgs) at the approximate location of the proposed monopole tower. 
The boring was performed by a truck mounted drill rig using continuous flight hollow stem augers to advance the 
hole. Split-spoon samples and Standard Penetration Test (SPT) resistance values (N-values) were obtained in 
accordance with ASTM D1586 at a frequency of four samples in the top 10 feet and one sample prior to auger 
refusal.  

The Split-spoon samples were transported to the TEP laboratory where they were classified by a qualified 
representative of the Geotechnical Engineer in general accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System 
(USCS), using visual-manual identification procedures (ASTM D2488).  

A boring location plan showing the approximate boring location and the boring log presenting the subsurface 
information obtained, accompanied with a brief guide to interpreting the boring log, are included in Appendix A 
and B, respectively. 

3) SITE CONDITIONS 

The site is located at 3 Berry Patch Road in Arrey, Sierra County, New Mexico. The proposed tower and compound 
are to be located in a gravel lot. The ground topography is lightly sloping downward to the southeast. 

4) SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

The following description of subsurface conditions is brief and general. For more detailed information, the 
individual boring log contained in Appendix B may be consulted. 

4.1) Soil 

The USCS classification of the soils encountered in the boring include SM and GM. The Standard 
Penetration Resistance (“N” Values) recorded in the subsurface materials range from 42 blows per foot 
of penetration to 50 blows with 1 inch of penetration. 

4.2) Rock 

Rock was not encountered in the boring. Refusal of auger advancement was encountered at a depth of 
15 feet (bgs) in the boring. Auger refusal was likely due to the presence of cobbles and boulders. 

4.3) Subsurface Water 

Subsurface water was not encountered in the boring at the time of drilling. It should be noted the 
subsurface water level will fluctuate during the year due to seasonal variations, precipitation events and 
construction activity in the area. 

4.4) Frost 

The Telecommunications Industry Association (TIA) frost depth for Sierra County, New Mexico is 20 
inches. 

  







 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 6 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

6) SEISMIC SITE CLASS 

The Site Class, per Section 1613.2.2 of the 2018 International Building Code (2018 IBC) and Chapter 20 of ASCE 
7 (2016), based on the site soil conditions is Site Class C. 

7) SOIL RESISTIVITY 

A soil resistivity test was performed at the TEP laboratory in accordance with ASTM G57 (Standard Test Method 
for Measurement of Soil Resistivity Using the Four Electrode Soil Box Method). The test result indicates a 
resistivity of 7,600 ohms-cm. It should be noted that soil resistivity will fluctuate during the year due to seasonal 
variations, precipitation events and depth below surface. 

  



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 7 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

8) CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS - SHALLOW FOUNDATION 

The following recommendations pertain to the newly proposed tower foundation only. Should additional 
recommendations be required for lightly loaded support structures, such as the equipment shelter, TEP can 
provide these, at the client’s request, for an additional fee. 

8.1) Excavation 

The boring data indicates excavation to the expected subgrade level for the shallow foundation will 
extend through sand and gravel. A large tracked excavator should be able to remove the materials with 
moderate to severe difficulty. A large tracked excavator with rock teeth and/or a pneumatic hammer will 
be necessary to remove the materials with difficulty. TEP anticipates the depth to the surface of the rock 
will vary outside of the boring location. Boulders and bedrock outcroppings are common to this 
geographic region and may also be encountered in the excavation area. 

Excavations should be sloped or shored in accordance with local, state and federal regulations, including 
OSHA (29 CFR Part 1926) excavation trench safety standards. It is the responsibility of the contractor 
for site safety. This information is provided as a service and under no circumstance should TEP be 
assumed responsible for construction site safety. 

8.2) Dewatering/Foundation Evaluation/Subgrade Preparation 

As subsurface water was not encountered during the subsurface exploration, dewatering will not likely 
be required. However, should subsurface water be encountered during construction, it can likely be 
controlled with the use of a sump and pump system and/or trenches. Dewatering components should 
be placed to not interfere with the placement of backfill materials and/or concrete foundations and 
should be utilized to keep the localized water table below the bottom of any excavation. 

After dewatering and excavation to the design elevation for the footing, the materials should be 
evaluated by a Geotechnical Engineer or a representative of the Geotechnical Engineer prior to 
reinforcement and concrete placement. This evaluation should include probing, shallow hand auger 
borings and dynamic cone penetrometer testing (ASTM STP 399) to help verify that suitable residual 
material lies directly under the foundation and to determine the need for any undercut and replacement 
of unsuitable materials. Loose surficial material should be compacted in the excavation prior to 
reinforcement and concrete placement to stabilize surface soil that may have become loose during the 
excavation process. TEP recommends a 6-inch layer of compacted dense-graded stone be placed just 
after excavation to aid in surface stability. 

8.3) Fill Placement and Compaction 

Backfill materials placed above the shallow foundation to the design subgrade elevation should not 
contain more than 5 percent by weight of organic matter, waste, debris or any otherwise deleterious 
materials. To be considered for use, backfill materials should have a maximum dry density of at least 
100 pounds per cubic foot as determined by standard Proctor (ASTM D 698), a Liquid Limit no greater 
than 40, a Plasticity Index no greater than 20, a maximum particle size of 4 inches, and 20 percent or 
less of the material having a particle size between 2 and 4 inches. Because small handheld or walk-
behind compaction equipment will most likely be used, backfill should be placed in thin horizontal lifts 
not exceeding 6 inches (loose).  

Fill placement should be monitored by a qualified Materials Technician working under the direction of a 
Geotechnical Engineer. In addition to the visual evaluation, a sufficient amount of in-place field density 
tests should be conducted to confirm the required compaction is being attained. 

  



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 8 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

8.4) Reuse of Excavated Soil 

The sand and gravel that meets the above referenced criteria can be utilized as backfill based on dry 
soil and site conditions at the time of construction. 

9) CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS - DRILLED SHAFTS 

Based on TEP’s experience, a conventional drilled shaft rig (Hughes Tool LDH, or equivalent) can be used to 
excavate to the auger refusal depth of TEP’s boring. An earth auger can typically penetrate the materials 
encountered to the auger refusal depth of the boring with moderate to severe difficulty. Materials below the auger 
refusal depth may require a coring bit or roller-bit to remove the material. Boulders and bedrock outcroppings are 
sometimes encountered in this geographic region and may be encountered outside of the boring location. Special 
excavation equipment may be necessary for a shaft greater that 60-inches in diameter. Augers designed especially 
for the removal of cobbles and boulders may be necessary for this site. 

The following are general procedure recommendations in drilled shaft construction using the “dry” method: 

1) Drilling equipment should have cutting teeth to result in a hole with little or no soil smeared or caked on 
the sides; a spiral like corrugated side should be produced. The shaft diameter should be at least equal 
to the design diameter for the full depth. 

2) The drilled shaft should be drilled to satisfy a plumbness tolerance of 1.5 to 2 percent of the length and 
an eccentricity tolerance of 2 to 3 inches from plan location. 

3) Refer to Section 4.3) for subsurface water information. Water will fluctuate during the year and during 
rain events. Any subsurface water should be removed by pumping, leaving no more than 3 inches in 
the bottom of the shaft excavation. 

4) A removable steel casing should be installed in the shaft for the entire depth to prevent caving of the 
excavation sides due to soil relaxation. Loose soils in the bottom of the shaft should be removed. 

5) The drilled shaft should be evaluated by the Geotechnical Engineer or their representative to confirm 
suitable end bearing conditions and to verify the proper diameter and bottom cleanliness. The shaft 
should be evaluated immediately prior to and during concrete operations. 

6) The drilled shaft should be concreted as soon as practical after excavation to reduce the deterioration 
of the supporting soils due to caving and subsurface water intrusion. 

7) The slump of the concrete is critical for the development of side shear resistance. TEP recommends a 
concrete mix having a slump of 6 to 8 inches be used with the minimum compressive strength specified 
by the structural engineer. A mix design incorporating super plasticizer will likely be required to obtain 
this slump. 

8) The concrete may be allowed to fall freely through the open area in the reinforcing steel cage provided 
it is not allowed to strike the reinforcing steel or the casing prior to reaching the bottom of the shaft 
excavation. 

9) The protective steel casing should be extracted as concrete is placed. A head of concrete should be 
maintained above the bottom of the casing to prevent soil and water intrusion into the concrete below 
the casing. 

  



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 9 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

Due to the sandy soil/gravel, the contractor may elect to utilize the “slurry” method for shaft construction. The 
following are general procedure recommendations in drilled shaft construction using the “slurry” method: 

1) Slurry drilled shafts are constructed by conventional caisson drill rigs excavating beneath a drilling mud 
slurry. Typically, the slurry is introduced into the excavation after the water table has been penetrated 
and/or the soils on the sides of the excavation are observed to be caving-in. When the design shaft 
depth is reached, fluid concrete is placed through a tremie pipe at the bottom of the excavation. 

2) The slurry level should be maintained at a minimum of 5 feet or one shaft diameter, whichever is greater, 
above the subsurface water level. 

3) Inspection during excavation should include verification of plumbness, maintenance of sufficient slurry 
head, monitoring the specific gravity, pH and sand content of the drilling slurry, and monitoring any 
changes in the depth of the excavation between initial approval and prior to concreting. 

4) A removable steel casing should be installed in the shaft for the entire depth to prevent caving of the 
excavation sides due to excavation disturbance and soil relaxation. Loose soils in the bottom of the 
shaft should be removed. 

5) The specific gravity or relative density of the drilling mud slurry should be monitored from the initial 
mixing to the completion of the excavation. An increase in the specific gravity or density of the drilling 
slurry by as much as 10 percent is indicative of soil particles settling out of the slurry onto the bottom of 
the excavation. This settling will result in a reduction of the allowable bearing capacity of the bottom of 
the drilled shaft. 

6) After approval, the drilled shaft should be concreted as soon as practical using a tremie pipe. 

7) For slurry drilled shafts, the concrete should have a 6- to 8-inch slump prior to discharge into the tremie. 
The bottom of the tremie should be set at about one tremie pipe diameter above the excavation. A 
closure flap at the bottom of the tremie should be used, or a sliding plug introduced into the tremie 
before the concrete, to reduce the potential for the concrete being contaminated by the slurry. The 
bottom of the tremie must be maintained in concrete during placement, which should be continuous. 

8) The protective steel casing should be extracted as concrete is placed. A head of concrete should be 
maintained above the bottom of the casing to prevent soil and water intrusion into the concrete below 
the casing. 

If variability in the subsurface materials is encountered, a representative of the Geotechnical Engineer should 
verify that the design parameters are valid during construction. Modification to the design values presented above 
may be required in the field. 

  



 June 3, 2024 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report NM06-087 Caballo 
Project Number 340646.959442 Page 10 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

10) SITE PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Boring Location Prior to Drilling Activities 

 

Boring Location After Drilling Activities 

 

 

 

 

  



 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report June 3, 2024 
Project Number 340646.959442 NM06-087  Caballo 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

BORING LAYOUT 

  





 
125 ft Proposed Monopole Subsurface Exploration Report June 3, 2024 
Project Number 340646.959442 NM06-087  Caballo 

                         

Performed By: Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc. 
326 Tryon Road, Raleigh, NC 27603 O) 919.661.6351 F) 919.661.6350 

website: http://www.tepgroup.net 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

BORING LOG 

 

 



























Design Info Date: 6/24/2024

Codes: 2021 New Mexico Commercial Building Code

TIA Standard TIA‐222‐ H ‐ Structural Standard for Antenna Supporting Structures

ASCE 7‐16

Wind: Basic Wind Speed (mph): 105
Risk Category: II
Exposure: C
Topographic Category: 1
Crest Height (ft): 0

Ice: No Ice per ASCE Design Hazard Report & TIA Annex B

Seismic: Risk Category: II

Importance Factor: 1.00

SDC: B

Site Class: C
Ss =  0.336
S1 =  0.108

SDS =  0.291
SD1 =  0.108

R =  1.5

W (kips) =  39.972
CS =  0.030

VS (kips) =  1.199

Geotechnical:  Tower Engineering Professionals, Inc.
TEP Project Number: 340646.959442
Dated: June 3, 2024

1426 North Marvin Street #101 / Gilbert, AZ 85233 / 480‐664‐9588



General Notes
1. The contractor and manufacturer shall verify all dimensions prior to fabrication

or construction and notify engineer of any noted discrepancy.
2. Typical details apply unless noted otherwise.  
3. Drawings and calculations represent the finished conditions upon completion

of construction.  Contractor is responsible for means and methods including 
rigging, shoring, temporary bracing, etc. as required to complete construction.

4. Drawings and calculations apply only to members specifically designed herein.  

Structural Steel
1. Structural Steel shall conform to the following ASTM specifications:

Tapered Poles: A572, Grade 65
Baseplates (Up to 2" thick): A572, Grade 55
Baseplates (Over 2" thick): A572, Grade 50
Pipe: A53, Grade B (35 ksi)
Hollow Structural Sections: A500, Grade B (46 ksi)
Plate for Reinforced Ports: A572, Grade 65
All Other Shapes and Plates: A36
Bolts (High Strength): F3125, Grade A325
Anchor Bolts: A615, Grade 75 (as noted)

F1554, Grade 55 
2. High strength bolts shall be fully tensioned by turn‐of‐nut or 

other AISC approved method.
3. Welding shall be performed by welders certified in the process and position required

in accordance with AWS D1.1 using 70 ksi electrodes, unless noted otherwise.
4. All steel shall be hot dipped galvanized in accordance with ASTM A123.

1426 North Marvin Street #101 / Gilbert, AZ 85233 / 480‐664‐9588





























































Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 1

Mat Foundation:
Pier Dimensions: 7' Diam x 4' 
Pier Reinforcement: (30) #9 Vertical and #5 ties at 6" o.c. 
Pad Dimensions: 22' x 22' x 3' Thick
Pad Reinforcement: #9 @ 12" o.c. Each Way, Top and Bottom



Detail Report : N5
Input Data
Pedestal: N5

Shape: CRND84

Material: Conc4000NW

Height (in): 48

Location (ft): (15 , 15)

Tension Bar Fy 
(ksi):

60

Shear Bar Fy (ksi): 60

Rebar Set: ASTM A615

Stress Block: Rectangular

Design Rule: Typical

Design Code: ACI 318-19

84 in

#5@12 in

Design Checks Gov. LC Required Available Unity Check Result

Shear Check Results (Envelope) 1 31.119 k 164.516 k 0.037 PASS

Bending Check Results 1 - - 0.716 PASS

Compression Development Length for Longitudinal Bars - 24.097 in 29.474 in 0.818 PASS

Punching Shear Check Results 8 0.06 ksi 0.13 ksi 0.46 PASS

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 2

Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:33 PM





Detail Report : DS1-X1
Input Data
Cut: DS1-X1

Material: Conc4000NW

Start (ft): (4.08 , 4)

End (ft): (4.08 , 26)

Tension Bar Fy 
(ksi):

60

Shear Bar Fy (ksi): 60

F'c (ksi): 4

Flex. Rebar Set: ASTM A615

Max Top bar Spac. (in): 12

Min Top bar Spac. (in): 12

Max Bot bar Spac. (in): 12

Min Bot bar Spac. (in): 12

Concrete Weight (k/ft ):3 0.145

λ: 1

EConcrete (ksi): 3644

Stress Block: Rectangular

Slab Design 
Option:

Construction

Rebar Spacing Inc 
(in):

2

Design Rule: Typical

Top Cover (in): 3 in

Bottom Cover (in): 3

Side Cover (in): 3

ACI 318-19 Code Check
Top Bending 
Check:

0.001

Gov Mu Top (k-ft): 1.957

phi*Mn Top (k-ft): 3275.415

Governing LC: 2

Bot Bending 
Check:

0.003

Gov Mu Bot (k-ft): -8.431

phi*Mn Bot (k-ft): 3275.415

Governing LC: 12

1 Way Shear 
Check:

0.224

Gov Vu (k): 101.171

phi*Vn (k): 451.591

Governing LC: 12

ρ :w 0.0027

λ :s 1

Top As Reqd:
Analysis (in ):2 0.013

4/3 (in ):2 NA

Min Flex (in ):2 17.107

Top As Prvd (in ):2 22.985

(23 #9)

Bot As Reqd:
Analysis (in ):2 0.058

4/3 (in ):2 NA

Min Flex (in ):2 17.107

Bot As Prvd (in ):2 22.985

(23 #9)

As Reqd(T/S) (in ):2 17.10720

Rho Reqd(T/S): 0.00180

Rho Prvd(Gross): 0.00484

Cross Section Detailing(All Bars Equally Spaced, Units: in)

#9@12
#9@12

264

3 3

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 4

Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:35 PM



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 5

Model Settings
Number of Reported Sections 5
Number of Internal Sections 100
Single No
Multiple (Optimum) Yes
Maximum No

Convert Existing Data Yes
Plate Local Axis Orientation Global

Code ASCE 7-10
Risk Category I or II
Drift Cat Other
Base Elevation (ft)
Include the weight of the structure in base shear calcs Yes
S1 (g) 1
SD1 (g) 1
SDS (g) 1
TL (sec) 5
T Z (sec)
T X (sec)
CtZ 0.02
CtX 0.02
CtExp. Z 0.75
CtExp. X 0.75
R Z 3
R X 3
Ω0Z 1
Ω0X 1
CdZ 4
CdX 4
ρ Z 1
ρ X 1



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 6

Concrete Properties
Label E [ksi] G [ksi] Nu Therm. Coeff. [1e⁵°F⁻¹] Density [k/ft³] f'c [ksi] Lambda Flex Steel [ksi] Shear Steel [ksi]

1 Conc3000NW 3156 1372 0.15 0.6 0.145 3 1 60 60
2 Conc3500NW 3409 1482 0.15 0.6 0.145 3.5 1 60 60
3 Conc4000NW 3644 1584 0.15 0.6 0.145 4 1 60 60
4 Conc3000LW 2085 907 0.15 0.6 0.11 3 0.75 60 60
5 Conc3500LW 2252 979 0.15 0.6 0.11 3.5 0.75 60 60
6 Conc4000LW 2408 1047 0.15 0.6 0.11 4 0.75 60 60

Design Rules - Mat Slab
Label Max Bending Chk Max Shear Chk Top Bar Bottom Bar Min Top Bar Spacing [in] Max Top Bar Spacing [in] Min Bot Bar Spacing [in] Max Bot Bar Spacing [in] Spacing Increment [in] Top Cover [in] Bottom Cover [in] Side Cover [in] Rebar Options

1 Typical 1 1 #9 #9 12 12 12 12 2 3 3 3 Force Top and Bottom

Slab
Label Thickness [in] Material Local Axis Angle [deg] Analysis Offset [in] Passive Pressure [ksf] Soil Overburden [ksf] Icr Factor

1 S1 36 Conc4000NW 0 0 0 0.406 1

Soil Definitions
Label Layers Subgrade Modulus [k/ft³] Allowable Bearing [ksf] Default

1 Default Single 100 77.1875 Yes

Design Rules - Pedestal
Label Max Bending Chk Max Shear Chk Longitudinal Bar Shear Tie Bar Cover [in]

1 Typical 1 1 #10 #5 4

Pedestals/Posts
Label Type Shape Material Design RulesAngle [deg]Height [in] Pedestal Rebar Design Pedestal Layout Shear Rebar Design Shear Layout

1 N5 PedestalCRND84Conc4000NW Typical 0 48 Custom NM06-087 Design Rule Use Design Rule

Design Strips
Label Rebar Angle from Plan Horizontal (deg) No. of Design Cuts Design Rule

1 DS1 0 50 Typical
2 DS2 90 50 Typical

Nodal Loads (Cat 1: DL)
Node Label Direction Magnitude [k, k-ft]

1 N5 Y 39.972

Nodal Loads (Cat 19: WLX)
Node Label Direction Magnitude [k, k-ft]

1 N5 X -31.119
2 N5 MZ 3358



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 7

Nodal Loads (Cat 21: WLZ)
Node Label Direction Magnitude [k, k-ft]

1 N5 Z 31.119
2 N5 MX 3358

Load Category
Category Node Loads

1 DL 1
2 WLX 2
3 WLZ 2

Load Combination
Label Solve Service Category Factor Category Factor Category Factor

1 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (a) Yes DL 1.2 WLX 1
2 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (b) Yes DL 1.2 WLZ 1
3 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (c) Yes DL 1.2 WLX -1
4 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (d) Yes DL 1.2 WLZ -1
5 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (e) Yes DL 1.2 WLX 0.707 WLZ 0.707
6 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (f) Yes DL 1.2 WLX -0.707 WLZ -0.707
7 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (g) Yes DL 1.2 WLX -0.707 WLZ 0.707
8 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (h) Yes DL 1.2 WLX 0.707 WLZ -0.707
9 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (a) Yes DL 0.9 WLX 1

10 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (b) Yes DL 0.9 WLZ 1
11 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (c) Yes DL 0.9 WLX -1
12 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (d) Yes DL 0.9 WLZ -1
13 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (e) Yes DL 0.9 WLX 0.707 WLZ 0.707
14 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (f) Yes DL 0.9 WLX -0.707 WLZ -0.707
15 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (g) Yes DL 0.9 WLX -0.707 WLZ 0.707
16 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (h) Yes DL 0.9 WLX 0.707 WLZ -0.707
17 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (a) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX 1
18 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (b) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLZ 1
19 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (c) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX -1
20 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (d) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLZ -1
21 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (e) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX 0.707 WLZ 0.707
22 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (f) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX -0.707 WLZ -0.707
23 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (g) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX -0.707 WLZ 0.707
24 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (1) (h) Yes Yes DL 1.2 WLX 0.707 WLZ -0.707
25 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (a) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX 1
26 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (b) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLZ 1
27 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (c) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX -1
28 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (d) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLZ -1
29 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (e) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX 0.707 WLZ 0.707
30 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (f) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX -0.707 WLZ -0.707
31 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (g) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX -0.707 WLZ 0.707
32 TIA-222-H 2.3.2 (2) (h) Yes Yes DL 0.9 WLX 0.707 WLZ -0.707

Nodal Soil Pressures (Envelope)
Label Max UC Max LC Soil Pressure[ksf] Allowable Bearing[ksf]

1 N10 0.078 32 6.056 77.188
2 N11 0.078 29 6.056 77.188
3 N12 0.078 31 6.056 77.188
4 N13 0.078 30 6.056 77.188
5 N5 0.01 21 0.745 77.188



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 8

Nodal Soil Pressures (Envelope) (Continued)
Label Max UC Max LC Soil Pressure[ksf] Allowable Bearing[ksf]

6 N6 0.025 19 1.943 77.188
7 N7 0.032 19 2.49 77.188
8 N8 0.032 19 2.482 77.188
9 N9 0.026 22 2.035 77.188

10 N14 0.031 24 2.429 77.188
11 N15 0.036 24 2.81 77.188
12 N16 0.044 32 3.432 77.188
13 N17 0.036 24 2.81 77.188
14 N18 0.031 23 2.429 77.188
15 N19 0.026 23 2.035 77.188
16 N20 0.032 18 2.482 77.188
17 N21 0.036 23 2.81 77.188
18 N22 0.045 27 3.489 77.188
19 N23 0.064 27 4.94 77.188
20 N24 0.064 27 4.935 77.188
21 N25 0.045 27 3.483 77.188
22 N26 0.045 28 3.468 77.188
23 N27 0.064 28 4.922 77.188
24 N28 0.064 28 4.935 77.188
25 N29 0.045 28 3.483 77.188
26 N30 0.025 20 1.943 77.188
27 N31 0.026 24 2.035 77.188
28 N32 0.021 24 1.637 77.188
29 N33 0.018 20 1.384 77.188
30 N34 0.062 30 4.747 77.188
31 N35 0.053 30 4.092 77.188
32 N36 0.044 30 3.432 77.188
33 N37 0.053 30 4.092 77.188
34 N38 0.025 18 1.943 77.188
35 N39 0.026 21 2.035 77.188
36 N40 0.032 18 2.482 77.188
37 N41 0.032 18 2.49 77.188
38 N42 0.062 31 4.747 77.188
39 N43 0.07 31 5.403 77.188
40 N44 0.064 27 4.903 77.188
41 N45 0.053 31 4.092 77.188
42 N46 0.045 26 3.468 77.188
43 N47 0.045 26 3.483 77.188
44 N48 0.036 21 2.81 77.188
45 N49 0.045 28 3.468 77.188
46 N50 0.064 28 4.922 77.188
47 N51 0.064 28 4.903 77.188
48 N52 0.053 32 4.092 77.188
49 N53 0.045 25 3.489 77.188
50 N54 0.045 25 3.483 77.188
51 N55 0.032 17 2.482 77.188
52 N56 0.032 17 2.49 77.188
53 N57 0.045 25 3.468 77.188
54 N58 0.064 25 4.922 77.188
55 N59 0.064 25 4.903 77.188
56 N60 0.053 29 4.092 77.188
57 N61 0.031 22 2.429 77.188
58 N62 0.026 22 2.035 77.188
59 N63 0.021 22 1.637 77.188
60 N64 0.045 25 3.468 77.188



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 9

Nodal Soil Pressures (Envelope) (Continued)
Label Max UC Max LC Soil Pressure[ksf] Allowable Bearing[ksf]

61 N65 0.045 25 3.483 77.188
62 N66 0.032 17 2.482 77.188
63 N67 0.045 26 3.468 77.188
64 N68 0.053 31 4.092 77.188
65 N69 0.044 31 3.432 77.188
66 N70 0.045 27 3.468 77.188
67 N71 0.036 22 2.81 77.188
68 N72 0.045 28 3.489 77.188
69 N73 0.032 20 2.49 77.188
70 N74 0.032 20 2.482 77.188
71 N75 0.018 19 1.384 77.188
72 N76 0.045 26 3.489 77.188
73 N77 0.045 26 3.483 77.188
74 N78 0.045 27 3.468 77.188
75 N79 0.036 23 2.81 77.188
76 N80 0.031 21 2.429 77.188
77 N81 0.036 21 2.81 77.188
78 N82 0.044 29 3.432 77.188
79 N83 0.062 32 4.747 77.188
80 N84 0.053 32 4.092 77.188
81 N85 0.025 17 1.943 77.188
82 N86 0.026 24 2.035 77.188
83 N87 0.062 29 4.747 77.188
84 N88 0.053 29 4.092 77.188
85 N89 0.021 23 1.637 77.188
86 N90 0.026 23 2.035 77.188
87 N91 0.032 19 2.482 77.188
88 N92 0.032 20 2.482 77.188
89 N93 0.045 27 3.483 77.188
90 N94 0.064 27 4.935 77.188
91 N95 0.036 22 2.81 77.188
92 N96 0.064 28 4.903 77.188
93 N97 0.07 30 5.403 77.188
94 N98 0.07 30 5.403 77.188
95 N99 0.064 27 4.903 77.188
96 N100 0.018 18 1.384 77.188
97 N101 0.021 21 1.637 77.188
98 N102 0.064 26 4.903 77.188
99 N103 0.07 31 5.403 77.188

100 N104 0.064 26 4.903 77.188
101 N105 0.064 26 4.922 77.188
102 N106 0.064 26 4.935 77.188
103 N107 0.045 28 3.483 77.188
104 N108 0.064 28 4.935 77.188
105 N109 0.064 25 4.935 77.188
106 N110 0.064 25 4.94 77.188
107 N111 0.064 25 4.935 77.188
108 N112 0.064 25 4.903 77.188
109 N113 0.064 25 4.922 77.188
110 N114 0.064 26 4.935 77.188
111 N115 0.064 26 4.922 77.188
112 N116 0.064 27 4.922 77.188
113 N117 0.064 28 4.94 77.188
114 N118 0.018 17 1.384 77.188
115 N119 0.064 26 4.94 77.188



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 10

Nodal Soil Pressures (Envelope) (Continued)
Label Max UC Max LC Soil Pressure[ksf] Allowable Bearing[ksf]

116 N120 0.064 27 4.922 77.188
117 N121 0.026 21 2.035 77.188
118 N122 0.07 32 5.403 77.188
119 N123 0.07 32 5.403 77.188
120 N124 0.07 29 5.403 77.188
121 N125 0.07 29 5.403 77.188

Slab Stability - Sliding
LC Slab Angle[deg] Va-xx[k] Vr-xx[k] Va-zz[k] Vr-zz[k] SR-xx SR-zz

1 17 S1 0 31.119 163.336 0 163.336 5.249 9.99+
2 18 S1 0 0 163.336 31.119 163.336 9.99+ 5.249
3 19 S1 0 31.119 163.336 0 163.336 5.249 9.99+
4 20 S1 0 0 163.336 31.119 163.336 9.99+ 5.249
5 21 S1 0 22.001 163.336 22.001 163.336 7.424 7.424
6 22 S1 0 22.001 163.336 22.001 163.336 7.424 7.424
7 23 S1 0 22.001 163.336 22.001 163.336 7.424 7.424
8 24 S1 0 22.001 163.336 22.001 163.336 7.424 7.424
9 25 S1 0 31.119 122.502 0 122.502 3.937 9.99+

10 26 S1 0 0 122.502 31.119 122.502 9.99+ 3.937
11 27 S1 0 31.119 122.502 0 122.502 3.937 9.99+
12 28 S1 0 0 122.502 31.119 122.502 9.99+ 3.937
13 29 S1 0 22.001 122.502 22.001 122.502 5.568 5.568
14 30 S1 0 22.001 122.502 22.001 122.502 5.568 5.568
15 31 S1 0 22.001 122.502 22.001 122.502 5.568 5.568
16 32 S1 0 22.001 122.502 22.001 122.502 5.568 5.568

Slab Stability - Overturning
LC Slab Angle[deg] Mo-xx[k-ft] Ms-xx[k-ft] Mo-zz[k-ft] Ms-zz[k-ft] Ms-xx/Mo-xx Ms-zz/Mo-zz

1 17 S1 0 0 5989.002 3575.833 5989.002 9.99+ 1.675
2 18 S1 0 3575.833 5989.002 0 5989.002 1.675 9.99+
3 19 S1 0 0 5989.002 3575.833 5989.002 9.99+ 1.675
4 20 S1 0 3575.833 5989.002 0 5989.002 1.675 9.99+
5 21 S1 0 2528.114 5989.002 2528.114 5989.002 2.369 2.369
6 22 S1 0 2528.114 5989.002 2528.114 5989.002 2.369 2.369
7 23 S1 0 2528.114 5989.002 2528.114 5989.002 2.369 2.369
8 24 S1 0 2528.114 5989.002 2528.114 5989.002 2.369 2.369
9 25 S1 0 0 4491.752 3575.833 4491.752 9.99+ 1.256

10 26 S1 0 3575.833 4491.752 0 4491.752 1.256 9.99+
11 27 S1 0 0 4491.752 3575.833 4491.752 9.99+ 1.256
12 28 S1 0 3575.833 4491.752 0 4491.752 1.256 9.99+
13 29 S1 0 2528.114 4491.752 2528.114 4491.752 1.777 1.777
14 30 S1 0 2528.114 4491.752 2528.114 4491.752 1.777 1.777
15 31 S1 0 2528.114 4491.752 2528.114 4491.752 1.777 1.777
16 32 S1 0 2528.114 4491.752 2528.114 4491.752 1.777 1.777

Pedestals/Posts Design Values
Label UC Gov LC Shear UC Gov LC Dir Phi Used Vertical Reinf Shear Reinf

1 N5 0.716 1 0.04 1 x 0.9 CUSTOM CUSTOM



Company
Designer
Job Number
Model Name

:
:
:
:

Pinnacle Consulting, Inc.
JSL
NM06-087
Caballo

Checked By : AAS

6/21/2024
1:42:32 PM

RISAFoundation Version 16 [ NM06-087_06-21-24.fnd ] Page 11

Strip Reinforcing
LabelUC TopLCTop Bars Gov Design Cut UC Top UC BotLC Bot Bars/Mid Bars Gov Design Cut UC Bot UC ShearLC Gov Design Cut UC Shear

1 DS1 0.377 2 #9@12in DS1-X25 0.765 12 #9@12in DS1-X25 0.652 12 DS1-X15
2 DS2 0.377 1 #9@12in DS2-X26 0.765 11 #9@12in DS2-X26 0.652 11 DS2-X40

Envelope Slab Soil Pressures
Label Max UC Max LC Soil Pressure[ksf] Allowable Bearing[ksf] Node

1 S1 0.078 32 6.056 77.188 N10





SS : 0.336

S1 : 0.108

Fa : 1.3

Fv : 1.5

SMS : 0.437

SM1 : 0.162

SDS : 0.291

SD1 : 0.108

TL : 6

PGA : 0.14

PGA M : 0.176

FPGA : 1.26

Ie : 1

Cv : 0.824

Seismic Design Category: B Design Response Spectrum

S  (g) vs T(s)a

MCE   Response SpectrumR

S  (g) vs T(s)a

Design Vertical Response Spectrum

S  (g) vs T(s)a

MCE   Vertical Response SpectrumR

S  (g) vs T(s)a

Seismic

C - Very Dense Soil and Soft RockSite Soil Class: 

Results: 

Data Accessed: Thu Jun 20 2024

Date Source: 
USGS Seismic Design Maps based on ASCE/SEI 7-16 and ASCE/SEI 7-16 Table 1.5-2. Additional data for 
site-specific ground motion procedures in accordance with ASCE/SEI 7-16 Ch. 21 are available from USGS.

Page 2 of 3https://ascehazardtool.org/ Thu Jun 20 2024



Ice

Results: 

Data Source: 

Date Accessed: 

Ice Thickness: 0.25 in.

Concurrent Temperature: 25 F

Gust Speed 30 mph

Standard ASCE/SEI 7-16, Figs. 10-2 through 10-8

Thu Jun 20 2024

Ice thicknesses on structures in exposed locations at elevations higher than the surrounding terrain and in valleys 
and gorges may exceed the mapped values.

Values provided are equivalent radial ice thicknesses due to freezing rain with concurrent 3-second gust speeds, 
for a 500-year mean recurrence interval, and temperatures concurrent with ice thicknesses due to freezing rain. 
Thicknesses for ice accretions caused by other sources shall be obtained from local meteorological studies. Ice 
thicknesses in exposed locations at elevations higher than the surrounding terrain and in valleys and gorges may 
exceed the mapped values.

The ASCE Hazard Tool is provided for your convenience, for informational purposes only, and is provided “as is” and without warranties of any 
kind. The location data included herein has been obtained from information developed, produced, and maintained by third party providers; or 
has been extrapolated from maps incorporated in the ASCE standard. While ASCE has made every effort to use data obtained from reliable 
sources or methodologies, ASCE does not make any representations or warranties as to the accuracy, completeness, reliability, currency, or 
quality of any data provided herein. Any third-party links provided by this Tool should not be construed as an endorsement, affiliation, 
relationship, or sponsorship of such third-party content by or from ASCE.

ASCE does not intend, nor should anyone interpret, the results provided by this Tool to replace the sound judgment of a competent 
professional, having knowledge and experience in the appropriate field(s) of practice, nor to substitute for the standard of care required of such 
professionals in interpreting and applying the contents of this Tool or the ASCE standard.

In using this Tool, you expressly assume all risks associated with your use. Under no circumstances shall ASCE or its officers, directors, 
employees, members, affiliates, or agents be liable to you or any other person for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential 
damages arising from or related to your use of, or reliance on, the Tool or any information obtained therein. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, you agree to release and hold harmless ASCE from any and all liability of any nature arising out of or resulting from any use of data 
provided by the ASCE Hazard Tool.

Page 3 of 3https://ascehazardtool.org/ Thu Jun 20 2024















ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

5/14/2024

(440) 914-0607 (440) 349-2195

20281

Sun State Towers IV, LLC
1426 N Marvin St, Ste 101
Gilbert, AZ 85233

A 1,000,000

X 35993628 10/23/2023 10/23/2024 1,000,000
$0 Deductible 10,000
Terrorism Included 1,000,000

2,000,000
2,000,000

TOTAL AGGREGATE 5,000,000
1,000,000A

73600411 10/23/2023 10/23/2024

25,000,000A
79898482 10/23/2023 10/23/2024 25,000,000

0

Sierra County is included as Additional Insured if required by written contract or agreement with respect to Site ID No. NM06-086 Caballo.

Sierra County
100 N Date St
Truth Or Consequences, NM 87901

PEPPCAP-02 SHELPMAN

Novak Insurance Agency, Inc.
30775 Bainbridge Rd #100
Solon, OH 44139

Stacy Helpman

stacy@novakinsurance.com

Federal Insurance Company

X
X

X
X

X X

X X

X

X

X



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN  
DELEGATING FISCAL AGENT SERVICES FOR THE  

COUNTY LIVESTOCK LOSS AUTHORITY 
 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding ( “MOU”) between Catron County (Catron) and Sierra 
County (Sierra”) is entered into on _____ day of _________, 2024. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Counties are bodies corporate and politic existing by and under the Constitution 
and Laws of the State of New Mexico; and, 
 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995) provides that Counties have the power to, 
“provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, 
comfort and convenience of any county or its inhabitants;” and, 

 
WHEREAS, under the authority of the Joint Powers Agreement Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 11-
1-1 et seq. (“Joint Powers Act”) the County of Catron, Sierra and Socorro established the County 
Livestock Loss Authority; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the CLLA was established to facilitate communication between management 
agencies, establish effective partnerships, and implement cooperative efforts to provide relief to 
New Mexico livestock producers in accordance with available funding, and to further facilitate 
the reduction of adverse wolf-livestock interactions and unlawful taking of federally endangered 
species; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Joint Power Agreement (JPA) which established the CLLA, effective July 18, 
2022, establishes Sierra County as the fiscal agent for the CLLA; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Counties establishing the CLLA have all approved forms of an amended JPA 
transferring the fiscal agent responsibility from Sierra County to Catron County, as they agree that 
Catron County is the most appropriate fiscal agent as it is the community most affected by the 
Mexican Wolf Recovery Program; and,  
 



WHEREAS, the purpose of this MOU is to effectuate the transfer of fiscal agent 
responsibilities, as desired by the establishing counties, until such time as it is formally transferred 
by amendment of the JPA.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND 
REPRESENTATIONS IN THIS MOU, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The County of Sierra hereby delegates its responsibilities as fiscal agent to the County of 
Catron.  This includes but is not limited to the authority to execute grants & agreements, 
receive & administer funds, hire employees on behalf of the CLLA and administer 
payments for depredation applications. The County of Catron hereby accepts receipt of this 
delegation of responsibilities. 

 
2. This MOU shall be from the date of approval until January 15, 2025, unless terminated 

earlier. 
 

3. Either party may terminate this MOU upon 30 days written notice.  Such early termination 
shall not nullify obligations incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to 
termination.  

 
4. Each Party shall be solely responsible for its own actions and for the actions of its 

employees, officers or agents under this MOU.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive 
any and all limitations on liability and other protections under the New Mexico Tort Claims 
Act. All of the privileges and immunities from liability, exemptions from laws, ordinances 
and rules, all pension, relief, disability, workmen's compensation and other benefits which 
apply to the activity of officers, agents or employees of any Party when performing their 
respective functions within the territorial limits of their respective public agencies, shall 
apply to them to the same extent while engaged in the performance of their functions and 
duties extraterritorially under the provisions of this MOU. 
 

5. The parties hereto will fully cooperate with the other and in connection with any steps 
required to be taken under this MOU. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this MOU on the dates specified below. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CATRON COUNTY  
 
 
APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this _______ day of _____________, 2024. 

            
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF CATRON COUNTY 

 
 

__________________________ 
Buster Floyd Green, Chair 

 
 

__________________________    
Haydn Forward, Vice-Chair 

 
 

__________________________ 
Audrey McQueen, Commissioner 

 
   
 

ATTEST BY:   
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Armijo, County Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SIERRA COUNTY  
 
 
APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this _______ day of _____________, 2024. 

            
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 
 

__________________________ 
Travis Day, Chair 

 
 

__________________________    
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

 
 

__________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
   
 

ATTEST BY:   
 
______________________________________ 
Shelly Trujillo, County Clerk  
 



REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration 
   
  Business Unit: 341 

RECIPIENT: 

Sierra County 

APPROPRIATION NUMBER: ALLOCATION AMOUNT: REVERSION DATE: 
 

24-ZI5042-18 
 

 

$ 262,500.00 
 

June 30, 2025 

ALLOCATION PURPOSE  

Two hundred sixty-two thousand five hundred dollars over three years to be utilized in accordance with the 
provisions of HB2. The first allocations will be disbursed at 100% within 5 business days of acceptance of this 
agreement to include approval of the local governing body  

ALLOCATION DISBURSEMENT 

The allocated funds will be disbursed over a three-year period, contingent upon amendment to HB2 during the next 
legislative session. Specifically, disbursements will occur as follows: 100% up to $150,000 the first year, 50% up to 
$75,000 the second year, and 25% up to $37,500 the third year. The Allocation Recipient will submit to the 
Department of Finance & Administration this signed document and evidence of approval of the local governing 
body. Disbursements of funds will be made within 5 business days of receipt of the signed agreement and evidence 
of approval of the local governing body.  

Funds for the first disbursement must be expended by June 30, 2025; the second 50% disbursement will be 
made in July 2025 to be expended by June 30th, 2026; and the last disbursement of 25% will be made in July 
2026 to be expended by June 30, 2027. Any amount not expended in each of the three years will be returned 
to the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration in the year that it is scheduled for 
reversion. All expenditures must occur prior to the reversion date.  

The Allocation Recipient agrees to submit quarterly reports using Exhibit A, Corrections Recruitment Report, 
providing updates on the hiring of officer positions.  

CERTIFICATION   

I hereby certify that Sierra County 

1. Will only use the allocated funds to carry out and/or perform activities described in allocation language. 
2. Will follow the procedure described in “Allocation Reporting” of allocated funds. 

   
Local Corrections/Detention Agency   Date 

 
 

Authorized Local Governing Body Authority  Date 
 
APPROVAL 
In accordance with the authority conferred on the Department of Finance & Administration by the statute 
appropriating these funds, I hereby approve this certification for appropriation number 24-ZI5042-18 in 
the amount of $150,000. 

 
 

  

Jeannette Gallegos 
Interim Director, Local Government Division 
 

 Date 
 







   

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
Sierra County  

 
“GRO SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS 

 County of Sierra Law Enforcement Programmatic Costs and Resources (Brantley) 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, in the 2024 Legislative Session, via House Bill 2 as appropriated and enacted by Governor 

Michelle Lujan Grisham, contained an appropriation to support programmatic costs, 
resources and services for County of Sierra (Hereinafter called “County”) and 

 
WHEREAS, the legislation further articulated that the South-Central Council of Governments would 

be the fiscal agent and responsible manager of all funding, uses, and administration in 
alignment with all applicable State laws and contracts including the attached grant 
agreement(s); and 

 
WHEREAS, the South-Central Council of Governments (hereinafter “SCCOG”) provides a range of 

planning services on behalf of the County and other entities in the south central region 
of New Mexico, and moreover has specific knowledge of the background and intent of 
said planning grant; and 

 
WHEREAS, SCCOG was statutorily established to function as a multi-jurisdictional planning entity, 

formed by and in service to a voluntary association of units of local government in 
Planning District 7, pursuant to: the Regional Planning Act, Section 3-56-1 through 3-56-
9, NMSA 1978; the Planning District Act, Sections 4-58-1 through 4-58-6, NMSA 1978, 
NMSA 1978; and Executive Orders of the New Mexico Governor dated January 2, 1969 
and January 10, 1973 regarding Planning and Development Districts in the State of New 
Mexico; and  

 
WHEREAS, The County of Sierra is an active member of the SCCOG and holds several voting seats 

on the Board of Directors thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration further encourages the use 

of intergovernmental services agreements as appropriate to the efficient procurement 
of inter-agency services; and 

 
WHEREAS, The SCCOG reviewed the GRO allocations with each legislator providing funding.  These 

meetings provided guidance and direction; and 
 
 















to do so as long as they are consistent with the Public Purposes described above.

4. If Grantee uses any part of this grant to fund another organization, it will take reasonable
steps to ensure that any grant funds are used consistently with the Public Purpose of this
grant and all of the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement. Grantee further agrees that
the grant funds may not be used to: (1) participate in, intervene in, or carry on, directly or
indirectly (including the publishing or distribution of statements), any political campaign on
behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate for public office or public referendum; (2) engage
in any effort to induce or encourage violations of law or public policy; (3) cause any private
inurement or improper private benefit to occur; or (4) for any purpose other than specified in
the Proposal and consistent with IRC Section 170(c)(2)(B), which relates to charitable,
educational, scientific, religious, or literary purposes.

5. The Sierra County Clerk’s Office shall not share with CTCL, and CTCL will never ask for, non-
public or confidential information about your jurisdiction’s voters or voting systems.

�. Grantee shall produce a report documenting how this grant has been expended to support its
proposed activities. This report shall be provided to CTCL by January 31, 2025.

7. The purpose of the Grant is to supplement the funds available to the Sierra County Clerk’s
Office and not to substitute for previously budgeted funds that would otherwise be provided
to Grantee by Sierra County, New Mexico but for the Grant. You represent and warrant to the
best of your knowledge that Sierra County, New Mexico does not intend to reduce the Sierra
County Clerk’s budget or fail to appropriate or provide previously budgeted funds to the Sierra
County Clerk’s Office because it has received this Grant.

�. CTCL may discontinue, modify, withhold part of, or ask for the return of all or part of the grant
funds if it determines, in its sole judgment, that (a) any of the above conditions have not been
met, (b) any of the representations by Grantee are inaccurate, or (c) CTCL must do so to
comply with Applicable Laws.

9. The grant term shall be July 31, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and is the period during
which covered costs may be applied to this Grant.

Please indicate that you accept and agree to these terms and conditions by having an authorized 
representative of your election jurisdiction sign and certify below. Please return a scanned copy of 
the signed letter via the link in your email at your earliest convenience. If needed, you may also 
return it via email at grants2024@techandciviclife.org.
 
On behalf of CTCL, I extend my best wishes in your work. 
 
 
 
Sincerely,

Tiana Epps-Johnson
Executive Director
Center for Tech and Civic Life



By signing this Grant Agreement, I certify that I am authorized to bind the Sierra County Clerk's 
Office to the terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement and that the Sierra County Clerk shall 
fully comply with the Grant Agreement including all restrictions on the use of funds.
 
Accepted on behalf of Sierra County Clerk

By:

Title:

Date:

APPENDIX: Sierra County, New Mexico Election Infrastructure Grant Proposal 2024 
Submitted to the Center for Tech & Civic Life



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 

COUNTY OF SIERRA 
RESOLUTION № ______________ 

 
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING SUBMISSION OF A COMPLETED APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE AND PROJECT APPROVAL TO THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners (the “Governmental Unit” or 
“Sierra County”) met upon notice of a regular meeting, duly published, at the Sierra County 
Administrative Offices, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901, on 
August 20, 2024; and,  
 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995) provides that Counties have the power to, 
“provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, 
comfort and convenience of any county or its inhabitants”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County exercises the powers of the County as a body politic and corporate 
pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-1(1884); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra (the "Governmental 
Unit") is a duly organized County created and formed pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-27-1 
(1884) and is a qualified entity under the New Mexico Finance Authority Act, Sections 6-21-1 
through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978 ("Act");  and  
 
WHEREAS, the New Mexico Finance Authority ("Finance Authority") is authorized pursuant to 
the Act, particularly Section 6-21-6.4 of the Act, to make grants from the local government 
planning fund (the “Fund”) to qualified entities to evaluate and estimate the costs of  implementing 
feasible alternatives for meeting water and wastewater public project needs or to develop water 
conservation plans, long-term master plans or economic development plans; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act the Finance Authority has developed an application procedure 
whereby the Governing Body may submit an application ("Application") to the Finance Authority 
for planning grant financial assistance from the Fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra of the Governmental 
Unit (the "Governing Body") desires to submit an Application for financial assistance from the 
Fund for a Planning Document, as defined in the Rules Governing the Local Government Planning 

110-266



Page 2 of 2 
 

Fund currently in effect and as specifically identified below, for the benefit of the Governmental 
Unit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends to submit the application for financial assistance from 
the Fund for to develop a comprehensive plan for the benefit of the Governmental Unit and its 
citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, the application prescribed by the Finance Authority to finance the preparation of the 
Comprehensive Plan with financial assistance from the Fund has been completed, submitted to, 
and reviewed by the Governing Body, and this Resolution approving submission of the completed 
Application to the Finance Authority for its consideration and review is required as part of the 
Application.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY:  
 
Section 1. That all lawful actions previously taken by the Governing Body and the Governmental 
Unit and their respective officers and employees in connection with the Application and the Project 
are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  
 
Section 2. That the completed Application submitted to the Governing Body is hereby approved 
and confirmed.  
 
Section 3. That the officers and employees of the Governmental Unit are hereby directed and 
requested to submit the completed Application to the Finance Authority, and are further authorized 
to take such other action as may be requested by the Finance Authority in connection with the 
Application and to proceed with arrangements for financing the Project.  
 
Section 4. All acts and resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are hereby rescinded,  
annulled and repealed.  
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 20th day of August 2024. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
_________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

 
 
_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 





















SIERRA COUNTY 
RESOLUTION NO. 110-268 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of meeting 

duly published at the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 North Date Street, Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico 87901 on August 20, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. as required by law; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises the 

powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-
1(1884); and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is statutorily charged with examining 

and settling all accounts of receipts and expenses of the county and all accounts chargeable 
against the county pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-16 (1876); and,   
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is the body that is statutorily charged 
with making such orders concerning the property belonging to the county as it deems expedient 
pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 (1876); and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is the entity empowered to exercise 
the County's corporate powers; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is tasked with the responsibility of 

representing and addressing the needs of it residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners determines that adopting an electronic 
signature policy will streamline the signature process, reducing the time it takes to complete and 
return documents, cost savings, convenience, security through built-in security features such as 
encryption and authentication, an audit trail that tracks who signed the document, when and from 
where, and accessibility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following procedures and processes 

will be followed: 
 

Electronic Signature Policy 

Purpose:  

This policy establishes guidelines for the use of electronic signatures within Sierra County to 
ensure consistency, security, and legal compliance. This policy applies to all County Departments 
and Personnel for documents requiring execution by County officials, with the exception of 
Ordinances and Proclamations. 

 



Scope: 

This policy applies to all Sierra County Departments and Personnel involved in the creation, 
management, and execution of documents requiring signatures. 

Policy: 

A. Definitions 

Electronic Signature: A digital representation of an individual's intent to sign a document 
electronically, including any form of electronic data, symbol, or process attached to or logically 
associated with the document. 

Adobe Acrobat Pro: An electronic signature solution chosen by Sierra County for signing 
documents electronically. 

B. Application 

Electronic signatures may be used for: 

• Contracts 

• Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) 

• Other documents requiring execution by County officials 

C. Exceptions 

Ordinances and Proclamations are excluded from this policy and will not be executed 
electronically. 

D. Authentication and Security 

To ensure the security and authenticity of electronic signatures, the following measures will be 
implemented: 

1. Adobe Acrobat Pro: The County will utilize Adobe Acrobat Pro for electronic 
signatures. Adobe Acrobat Pro provides secure authentication methods, including multi-
factor authentication, to verify the identity of signatories. 

2. Audit Trails: Adobe Acrobat Pro will maintain an audit trail of all signature activities, 
providing a record of each action taken, including timestamps and IP addresses. 

E. Training and Support 

All County personnel involved in the execution of documents electronically will receive training 
on the use of Adobe Acrobat Pro. Training sessions will cover document preparation, signature 
processes, and troubleshooting.  Ongoing support will be available for users encountering issues 
with electronic signatures or the Adobe Acrobat Pro platform. The County’s IT contractor will 
provide assistance as needed. 

F. Document Retention 



Electronically signed documents will be stored securely in Adobe Acrobat Pro's cloud storage, 
with access restricted to authorized personnel only.  Signed documents will be retained in 
accordance with the County’s records management policies and any applicable legal or 
regulatory requirements. 

10. Approval and Adoption 

This policy has been approved by the Board of County Commissioners, and is effective as of 
August 20, 2024. 

 
[Signature Page Follows] 



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 20th  day of August 2024.  

   
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
  
  

______________________________ _____________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman     James Paxon, Vice-Chairman    
 
 

______________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Member 

 
 
  [SEAL] 
      Attest: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Shelly Trujillo, Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 1 

 
SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

ELECTION PROCLAMATION 
AND 

RESOLUTION No. 110-269 
 

  
 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, met in a 
regular meeting on August 20, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration 
Office, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises 
the powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 
4-38-1 (1884); and,  
  

WHEREAS, having recognized the increasing risk and impact of arroyo-related 
flooding within the county, as reflected by the 2022 floods that precipitated the Governor’s 
Emergency Flood Declaration, and the disastrous 2020 floods that caused extensive 
damage in the City of Truth or Consequences, and the Village of Williamsburg, this Board 
in April 2024 directed counsel petition the District Court for an Order to direct that the 
question of the creation of the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District be presented 
to the voters of Sierra County for consideration at the upcoming general election; 
 

WHEREAS, after hearing testimony regarding the need for the District, the District 
Court found the petition to have been presented in conformity with the requirements of the 
Flood Control District Act and that the allegations of the petition are true; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Flood Control Act, the District Court Ordered that the 

question of the organization of the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District be 
submitted to the qualified electors of Sierra County at the general election to be held on 
November 5, 2024; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Order further approved the precise inquiry to be submitted to the 

qualified voters of Sierra County, namely “Shall the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control 
District be established for the purpose of mitigating the risks associated with flooding, 
implementing proactive flood control measures to protect lives, property, and 
infrastructure, fostering sustainable development and economic growth by reducing flood-
related damages, and enhancing public safety and emergency preparedness within both the 
incorporated and unincorporated areas of Sierra County?”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 72-18-10, the Sierra County Arroyo Flood 
Control District will only be created and the Directors of the District seated if a majority 
of votes cast at the election are in favor of organization.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO AS FOLLOWS: 



 2 

   
Section 1.  That the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District question shall be 

submitted to the registered qualified electors of Sierra County, New Mexico coincident 
with the general election on November 5, 2024.  

 
Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 1-11-1 through 1-11-3 NMSA 1978, the County 

Clerk shall give notice of the election.  The notice of the election shall be published in a 
legal newspaper as provided in Section 14-11-2, or alternatively a legal newspaper of 
general circulation in the County, at least one time, not more than twenty one days and not 
less than seven days prior to the election date, and posted no later than twenty days before 
the election, give notice of the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District election 
question by posting the Proclamation, including addresses of polling places and list of 
precinct board members in English and Spanish in a public building in the County and in 
at least one conspicuous place in each precinct in the County, and pursuant to Section 1-1-
15 NMSA 1978, shall continue to post the Proclamation for at least 7 days prior to the 
Election Date. The County Clerk shall also place the proclamation for the election on the 
county’s website. The Proclamation shall be published in full, in substantially the following 
form, with only such changes as are approved by the District Court and as provided by law, 
in English and Spanish. 



 3 

NOTICE OF SIERRA COUNTY  
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 5, 2024 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that at an election (the "Election") is to be held in 
Sierra County, New Mexico (the "County") on Tuesday, the 5th day of November, 2024, 
as part of the general election on that date, there will be presented for vote to the qualified 
registered electors of the County the following question: 
 
SIERRA COUNTY ARROYO FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT QUESTION 
 
Shall the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District be established for the purpose of 
mitigating the risks associated with flooding, implementing proactive flood control 
measures to protect lives, property, and infrastructure, fostering sustainable development 
and economic growth by reducing flood-related damages, and enhancing public safety and 
emergency preparedness within both the incorporated and unincorporated areas of Sierra 
County? 
 
PREGUNTA DEL DISTRITO DE CONTROL DE INUNDACIONES DE ARROYO 
DEL CONDADO DE SIERRA 
 
¿Debe establecerse el Distrito de Control de Inundaciones de Arroyo del Condado de Sierra 
con el fin de mitigar los riesgos asociados con las inundaciones, implementar medidas 
proactivas de control de inundaciones para proteger vidas, propiedades e infraestructura, 
fomentar el desarrollo sostenible y el crecimiento económico mediante la reducción de los 
daños relacionados con las inundaciones y mejorar ¿Seguridad pública y preparación para 
emergencias dentro de las áreas incorporadas y no incorporadas del Condado de Sierra? 
 
A person is a qualified elector of the County if on the day of the election he or she is a 
citizen of the United States, at least 18 years of age, and a resident of the County. To vote, 
qualified electors of the County must have registered with the Sierra County Clerk or any 
other voter registration agent in accordance with the law. Any qualified elector of the 
County who is not registered and who wishes to vote at the election may register at the 
Sierra County Clerk’s Office, 1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico, 87901 or at a designated agency as provided in NMSA 1978 §1-4-1 et seq. during 
regular office hours prior to 5:00 p.m., or at a voting location on election day pursuant to 
NMSA 1978, Section 1-4-5.7. 
 
Pursuant to the Absent Voter Precinct Act, NMSA, §1-6-19 et seq., there is hereby created 
an absent voter precinct for the County located in the office of the Clerk of Sierra County, 
members of which shall be appointed by the County Clerk of Sierra County.  Pursuant to 
the Absent Voter Act, NMSA 1978 §§ 1-6-1 through 1-6-16.2, qualified electors may also 
vote early at the following locations:  

 
Sierra County Clerk’s Office, 1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences 
 



 4 

Early Voting Hours are as follows: Beginning October 8, 2024, the 28th day prior to 
Election Day and ending November 2, 2024, on regular days of business from 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., and the Saturday prior to Election Day, from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
 
The polls for the election will be open between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on the day of the 
election. 

 
The election shall be held in every precinct in the County.  The Voting Convenience 
Centers for the election are as follows: 
 

VCC LOCATION/LUGAR ADDRESS/DIRECCION PRECINCTS 

 

Hillsboro Community Center 
VCC 
Ken James Senior Center 
VCC 
Elephant Butte Community 
Center VCC 
Winston Community Church 
VCC 
Monticello Fire Station VCC 
Caballo Fire Station VCC 
Albert J. Lyon Event Center 
VCC 
T. or C. Civic Center VCC 
 

Elenora Street, Hillsboro 
(Block 6, Lots 3,8,11,12) 
13985 Hwy 187, Arrey 
103 Rio Grand, Elephant 
Butte 
 Hwy 52, Winston 
State Hwy 142, Monticello 
Hwy 187, Caballo 
2953 South Broadway, 
Truth or Consequences 
400 W 4th, 
Truth or Consequences 

1A 
 
1B 
2A, 10 
 
3A 
3B 
4  
5, 6 & 7 & 11 
 
2B, 8 & 9, 12 
 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, being the governing body of the County, has caused this notice to be published as 
required by law and dated this 20th day of August 2024. 
 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 
 
      By_________________________________  
       Travis Day, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
_____________________________  
Shelly Trujillo 
 
 


